
 
 

SITE: 12 Ulan-Wollar Road, Ulan NSW 2850 

POSTAL: Locked Bag 2003, Mudgee NSW 2850 
PHONE: +61 2 6376 1500 
WEBSITE: www.moolarbencoal.com.au 
ABN 59 077 939 569  

 

 MOOLARBEN COAL OPERATIONS PTY LTD, PART OF THE YANCOAL AUSTRALIA GROUP 

 

MOOLARBEN COAL OPERATIONS - COMMUNITY CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
MEETING No. 67 

 
 

Date: Tuesday, 28th November 2023 
Time: 1:05 pm 
Location: Moolarben Coal Open Cut Administration Board Room, Ulan 
Attendance: Independent Chairperson 

Lisa Andrews (LA) 
 
Community Members 
Dr Julia Imrie (JI) 
Bev Smiles (BS) 
Aleshia Lonsdale (AL) 
 
Moolarben Coal Operations 
Brian Wesley (BW) 
Trent Cini (TC) 
Rebecca Shanks (RS) 
Emily Scanlon (ES) {Minute taker} 
 
Apologies 
David Lowe (DL)  
Helen Ungaro (HU) 
Mayor MWRC - Cr Des Kennedy (DK) 
David Stokes (DS) 
Cr Katie Dicker (KD) – MWRC Delegate 
 
 
Meeting 67 Agenda and Presentation were provided to all meeting attendees. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

https://abr.business.gov.au/SearchByAbn.aspx?abn=59077939569


Page | 2                                                                          Moolarben Coal Operations CCC Minutes – 28 November 2023 

 

1. Introduction and Welcome 

Lisa Andrews (LA) opened the meeting and welcomed all attendees to the Moolarben Coal Operations (MCO) 
Community Consultative Committee (CCC).  
 
LA advised there are no changes to the declarations by the CCC members.  
 
2. Apologies 

David Lowe (DL)  
Helen Ungaro (HU) 
David Stokes (DS) 
Mayor MWRC - Cr Des Kennedy (DK) 
Cr Katie Dicker (KD) – MWRC Delegate   
 

3. Business Arising from Previous Finalised Minutes 

LA confirmed previous meeting minutes finalised and distributed on 22 September 2023.  

TC informed the members that the previous action items not already closed out would be addressed during the 
presentation. 

Actions from Meeting 66: 

1. MCO to provide bi-annual, groundwater quality results for standpipe bores to JI - Complete 
2. MCO to provide blast information in the next CCC meeting - Complete 
3. LA to provide the CCC Annual Report to the CCC  - Complete 
4. Provide the revised CCC documents for review, including information on alternative representatives - 

Complete 

Correspondence as sent with the Meeting Notice on 13/11/23 with two additional items: 

• 12/9/23 – Email to members with draft minutes for review as well as revised CCC guidelines documents. 
• 22/9/23 - Email to members with final minutes as well as the draft Terms of Reference. 
• 31/10/23 – Email from JI requesting further information from the IAPUM report and recommendations for 

MCC UG4 Extraction Plan.  Forwarded to MCO for action. 
• 6/11/23 – Email from MCO with responses to JI’s questions.  Forwarded to JI 7/11/23. 
• 13/11/23 – Email to members with the Meeting Notice & Agenda for this CCC. 
• 21/11/23 – Email from JI requesting water data.  Forwarded to TC the same day. 
• 24/11/23 – Email to members with reminder for this meeting. 

LA reminded the CCC that the Code of Conduct and Declaration of Interest forms must be signed by each member 
annually and this could be completed at the next meeting. TC advised MCO will provide these documents at the 
next meeting (Action 1). LA advised the Terms of Reference is ready to be finalised if there are no further questions 
or comments from the CCC (Action 2). 

CCC Update Presentation 
 
RS welcomed CCC members and provided an update on the 2023 Community Support Program (CSP) and 
Community Events since the last meeting. 
 
RS provided an operations update for the opencut. JI asked for clarification on the location of the recommencing 
OC1 operations. TC advised the location and the expected timeframe for the operations. 
  



Page | 3                                                                          Moolarben Coal Operations CCC Minutes – 28 November 2023 

 

RS provided an operational update for the underground. JI queried if the ongoing and completed piezometers had 
final code names. TC advised the naming is confirmed once drilling is completed and provided the naming for the 
complete piezometers. JI referred to the Independent Panel for Underground Mining recommendation in their 
UG4 report for piezometer installation to be completed before mining in Longwall 404 commences to allow or 
further advice on environmental protection TC clarified that this was not the case. TC provided a copy of the 
groundwater data JI had requested (Meeting #66, Action 1), maps and a status update to the CCC to detail the 
process and inform the status. JI emphasised the importance of having sufficient time to collect and assess data 
and information in order to make proactive decisions and inform a trigger action response plan. JI asked if the final 
geological analysis and updated groundwater technical report required in the conditions and end of panel 
monitoring reports for UG4 were accessible. TC advised the revised groundwater technical report would be 
available once approved by the DPE. BS queried when data will be collected from the new piezometers. TC advised 
data collection starts shortly after installation is complete, however the monitoring bore generally requires time to 
settle. JI queried the depths of the new piezometers in the north. TC advised the monitoring bores will target the 
required strata however, the depths are confirmed during installation. 

BS queried the timeframe for each longwall to be completed. BW provided an estimate of two longwall panels per 
year. BS queried if enough data has been collected to start Longwall 404. TC reiterated the findings of the 
Independent Expert Panel for Underground Mining during the assessment of the Extraction Plan regarding 
Longwall 404, and advised the CCC generally the information being collected will be used to support the extraction 
plan for Longwalls 409-414.  
 
RS provided an update on exploration. BS queried what period the presentation was referring to. TC advised that 
the presentation includes a summary of the last quarter and provides insight into the next quarter.  
 
RS provided an update on environmental monitoring. JI queried if the stop in discharge was due to less 
groundwater being extracted or if more water was being reused on-site. TC advised that the operation of the WTP 
is conducted in accordance with operational requirements and provided an update on the current underground 
make of approximately 11ML including recirculation, water supply, and inflows.  
 
RS provided an update on surface water quality. JI asked if the rise in pH was attributed to Ulan discharge. TC 
advised there is not necessarily a correlation to discharge, and climatic conditions would also be contributing.   
 
RS provided an update on air quality and blast results (Meeting #66, Action 2). BS queried the limits for blasting. TC 
explained the limits for ground vibration and blast overpressure. TC advised the Annual Review provides further 
information regarding blast data in relation to the limits. BS asked if blast complaints are more frequent during 
specific weather conditions. LA queried if blast have been investigated following a compliant and found to be 
compliant. TC advised that is correct.  
 
RS provided an update on noise monitoring and community complaints.  
 
RS provided an update on rehabilitation including the aerial seeding program in OC2. BS queried what seed mix 
was used. TC advised the mix included box gum woodland species. TC explained the aerial seeding process further. 
BS asked if the hectares seeded in OC2 could be provided in the next CCC meeting (Action 3).  
 
RS provided an update on the biodiversity offset areas including the impacts from the recent bush fires. BS asked 
how many hectares were affected. RS advised the exact areas have not been confirmed, although impacts of up to 
50% across some offsets have been estimated. BS asked what MCO will be doing post bushfire. RS advised once the 
areas are safe, ecologists complete a post-fire assessment and provide recommendations. TC advised 
infrastructure is also repaired.  
 
TC provided an update on the UG2 modification. BS asked what further information the DPE requested. TC advised 
key issues were generally regarding biodiversity and offsetting. BS asked the timeframe on the DPE Assessment 
Report. TC advised that MCO are hopeful for it to be made available prior to Christmas.   
 



Page | 4                                                                          Moolarben Coal Operations CCC Minutes – 28 November 2023 

 

TC provided an update on the OC3 extension project. TC informed the CCC the Amended Project and Submissions 
Report is planned for submission during December. JI asked if the CCC could be informed at submission (Action 4). 
 
RS provided an employment update.  

4. General Business 

LA asked if there were any general business from members.  
 
BS queried if MCO anticipate discharging anytime soon given the expected rainfall. TC advised MCO will continue 
to operate the water treatment plant in accordance with the site management requirements, however it’s unlikely 
that MCO will require water release. BS asked if MCO could advise the CCC when discharge recommences (Action 
5). TC advised MCO will provide an update to the CCC through LA.  
 
BS queried how MCO manages fires on and near MCO land. BW advised of the Incident Management Team’s 
process which includes high involvement with the Rural Fire Service (RFS). BW advised MCO have some firefighting 
equipment that is also used for on-site emergency services. TC added the MCO Emergency Response Team (ERT) 
were able to assist the RFS with the recent fires. BW advised MCO also provided their drone to capture an aerial 
view of the fires to assist the emergency services.  

JI asked what MCO do to minimise the fire risk associated with coal stockpiles during bush fires when winds are 
high. TC advised MCO are able to utilise a water spraying system across the coal stockpiles.    
 
LA presented the CCC meeting schedule for 2024. JI asked if the meeting time could be moved to 2pm. The CCC 
agreed.  

5. Next Meeting: 5th March 2024, on site at 2:00 pm. Subsequent 2024 meetings proposed for 4thJune, 3rd 
September and 26th November. 
 

Meeting closed at 2:06 pm with LA thanking members for their attendance and participation throughout the year, 
wishing all a happy festive season. TC also thanked members for their 2023 participation and provided members 
with Christmas hampers in appreciation of their contributions to the CCC during 2023 on behalf of MCO. 
 
Action Items: 

Item Action Responsibility 
1 Provide Code of Conduct and Declaration of Interest forms at next meeting MCO 
2 Terms of Reference to be finalised LA 
3 Provide the hectares seeded as part of rehabilitation in OC2 at next meeting MCO 
4 Advise CCC on submission of the Amended OC3 Extension Project report MCO 
5 Advise CCC when discharge recommences MCO 

 



Community 
Consultative 
Committee Update

Moolarben Coal Operations

November 2023



28 November 2023

2

2

2023 Community Support Program (CSP)

Yancoal-Moolarben Coal CSP Events during 2023 included:

 Dunedoo Tunes on the Turf

 Magnificent Mudgee Business Awards

 Cassilis Country Music Festival 



28 November 2023

3

Operational Update - Opencut

 Open cut operations in OC2, OC3 & OC4.

 Open cut operations are recommencing 
in OC1.

3



28 November 2023

4

Operational Update - Underground
 Longwall operations in LW403

 Continued underground development in UG4.

 UG4 EP continued Implementation
• Global Navigation Satellite System (GNSS) Array installation 

on going

• Establishment of environmental monitoring sites in the 
Goulburn River National Park – ongoing.

4

• PZ194 and PZ195–
complete 

• PZ – A – Approvals ongoing

• PZ – B – complete

• PZ – C – complete

• PZ – D – complete

• PZ – E – planned for 2023

• PZ – F – planned for 2023



28 November 2023

5

5

Exploration Update 

 Drilling – Planned to continue in 
ML1715 

 Drilling is planned to continue 
in EL6288 and EL7073

 Rehabilitation and monitoring 
activities have continued during 
the period.

EL7073

EL6288

EL6288



28 November 2023

6

Environmental Monitoring

6

Monitoring network

 Water; 
 Air Quality;
 Blasting; 
 Noise; and
 Meteorology.



28 November 2023

7

Water Release – EPA01

7



28 November 2023

8

Water Release – EPA01

8



28 November 2023

9

Water Release – EPA01

9



28 November 2023

10

Water Quality - pH

10

* Monitoring Locations with associated trigger investigation levels as per the Surface Water Management Plan

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

pH
 (p

H 
U

ni
t)

SW01 - Goulburn River*

SW02 - Goulburn River

SW04 - Murragamba Ck

SW05 - Moolarben Ck*

SW07 - Lagoon Ck

SW08 - Moolarben Ck

SW09 - Moolarben Ck

SW12 - Goulburn River

SW15 - Wilpinjong Ck

SW16 - Wilpinjong Ck*

SW17 - Eastern Ck

SW18 - Wilpinjong Ck

SW22 - Goulburn River

SW23 - Drainage Line 1

SW24 - Drainage Line 2



28 November 2023

11

Water Quality - EC

11

* Monitoring Locations with associated trigger investigation levels as per the Surface Water Management Plan



28 November 2023

12

Water Quality - TSS

12

* Monitoring Locations with associated trigger investigation levels as per the Surface Water Management Plan



28 November 2023

13

Air Quality

13

Monthly monitoring reports are available on our website:
www.moolarbencoal.com.au/page/environment/environmental-monitoring/

Site October 2022
PM10 Annual Average 

(µg/m3)

October 2023
PM10 Annual Average 

(µg/m3)

Air Quality
PM10 Annual Average 

Criteria (µg/m3)

TEOM 01 11.4 15.7 25.0

TEOM 07 6.9 10.1 25.0

TEOM 04 10.7 13.7 25.0

Site October 2022 
PM2.5 Annual Average 

(µg/m3)

October 2023
PM2.5 Annual Average 

(µg/m3)

Air Quality
PM2.5 Annual Average Criteria

(µg/m3)

TEOM 07 3.5 4.7 8.0

http://www.moolarbencoal.com.au/page/environment/environmental-monitoring/


28 November 2023

14

Blasting

14

Monthly monitoring reports are available on our website:
www.moolarbencoal.com.au/page/environment/environmental-monitoring/

Site August 2023
Blast Overpressure 

(dBL)

September 2023
Blast Overpressure 

(dBL)

October 2023
Blast Overpressure 

(dBL)

Limit 
(dBL)

Min Max Min Max Min Max

BM1 Ulan School 83.8 102.7 82.3 101.0 85.2 111.7 115/120

BM5 Ridge Rd 85.6 113.6 83.6 106.3 82.3 115.6 115/120

BM8 Moolarben Rd 84.7 105.0 85.9 112.7 79.5 114.3 115/120

Site August 2023
Ground Vibration 

(mm/s)

September 2023
Ground Vibration 

(mm/s)

October 2023
Ground Vibration 

(mm/s)

Limit 
(mm/s)

Min Max Min Max Min Max

BM1 Ulan School 0.05 0.25 0.04 0.36 0.06 0.22 5/10

BM5 Ridge Rd 0.04 0.60 0.01 0.38 0.01 0.44 5/10

BM8 Moolarben Rd 0.02 0.42 0.00 0.28 0.01 0.37 5/10

http://www.moolarbencoal.com.au/page/environment/environmental-monitoring/


28 November 2023

15

Noise Monitoring

 All monthly & quarterly 
attended noise monitoring 
within criteria.

 Continued implementation of:
 Planning controls - scheduling

 Engineering controls - attenuation

 Operational controls - bunds/screens

 Real-time monitoring triggers

 Real-time response protocols

15



28 November 2023

16

16

Community Complaints 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

Other

Blasting

Noise

Air Quality

MCO Complaints 
Aug - Nov 2023 

Number of Complaints Complainants



28 November 2023

17

Rehabilitation Update

 Rehabilitation areas in OC2 were seeded in 
September by helicopter.

 Landform establishment is in progress in OC2, 
OC3 and OC4. 

17



28 November 2023

18

Biodiversity Offset Areas Update

 Offset maintenance works have 
continued, with feral animal 
baiting and weed management 
programs underway.

 Bushfire affected the Ulan 18 and 
Bobadeen offsets. 

18

Ulan 18 Cluster



28 November 2023

19

19

UG2 Modification
 Additional Information provided to the 

Department. 



28 November 2023

20

20

OC3 Extension Project – Amended Project
Amendment Report

 Target lodgement in December 2023

 Supporting specialist studies being 
undertaken include:

 Surface Water

 Groundwater

 Biodiversity 

 Aboriginal Cultural Heritage 

 Aquatic Ecology 

 Noise

 Blasting

 Economic 

 Air Quality 

 Greenhouse Gas

Preparation of Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)

DPE places EIS on Public Exhibition 

Public and Agencies review and provide submissions 
to DPE

Preparation of Amendment and Submissions Report 

DPE Assessment 

Determination

Current 
Status 

Preparation and lodgement of Scoping Report and 
Request for SEARs

DPE issues SEARs

Lodgement of Development Application 
and EIS with DPE



28 November 2023

21

Employment Update

Current Traineeships 
 28 Trainees currently onsite  

 16 Underground Trainees
 1 Administration Trainee at the 

Underground
 11 Open Cut Trainees

Apprentices 
 28 Apprentices currently onsite  

 8 Underground Apprentices 
 13 Open Cut Apprentices
 7 Coal Handling and Preparation Plant 

(CHPP) Apprentices

21



28 November 2023

22

22


	Nov 23 MCO CCC Presentation.pdf
	Community Consultative Committee Update
	2023 Community Support Program (CSP)
	Operational Update - Opencut
	Operational Update - Underground
	Exploration Update 
	Environmental Monitoring
	Water Release – EPA01
	Water Release – EPA01
	Water Release – EPA01
	Water Quality - pH
	Water Quality - EC
	Water Quality - TSS
	Air Quality
	Blasting
	Noise Monitoring
	Community Complaints 
	Rehabilitation Update
	Biodiversity Offset Areas Update
	UG2 Modification
	OC3 Extension Project – Amended Project
	Employment Update
	Slide Number 22


